
 
 

 
NOTES: 

(1) Members are reminded that copies of all representations received are available for inspection in the 
Members’ Room 

(2)  As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this meeting will be 
broadcast live on its website and the record archived for future viewing. The broadcast / record is 

accessible at: www.eastsussex.gov.uk/webcasts 

REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
MEETING 10.30 am WEDNESDAY, 18 DECEMBER 2019 
 
COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
 
MEMBERSHIP -  Councillor Richard Stogdon (Chair)  

Councillors Barry Taylor (Vice Chair), Bob Bowdler, Godfrey Daniel, 
Kathryn Field, Tom Liddiard and Pat Rodohan 
 

 
A G E N D A  
 
1   Minutes of the meeting held on 13 November 2019  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2   Apologies for absence   

 
3   Disclosures of interests   

Disclosures by all members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the member regards the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct. 

 
4   Urgent items   

Notification of items which the Chair considers to be urgent and proposes to take at the 
appropriate part of the agenda. Any members who wish to raise urgent items are asked, 
wherever possible, to notify the Chair before the start of the meeting. In so doing, they 
must state the special circumstances which they consider justify the matter being 
considered urgent. 

 
County Matter Proposals - report(s) by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport  
 
5A   Variation of Condition 2 (Approved drawings) of planning permission RR/741/CM 

seeking retrospective permission for amendments to the layout and fencing at the 
pumping station at Fourteen Acre Lane. Three Oaks Wastewater Pumping Station, 
Fourteen Acres Lane, Three Oaks - RR/834/CM  (Pages 5 - 20) 
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport  
 

5B   Retention of deposited inert building waste. Appletree Cottage, Beacon Lane, Cripps 
Corner, Staplecross, Robertsbridge, TN32 5QP - RR/828/CM  (Pages 21 - 32) 
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport  
 

6   Any other items previously notified under agenda item 4   
 

 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/webcasts


 

 

County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent  
LEWES BN7 1UE 10 December 2019 
 
Contact Simon Bailey, Democratic Services Officer,  
01273 481935 
Email: simon.bailey@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
 



 
 
 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Planning Committee held on 13 November 2019 at County Hall, 
Lewes 
 

 
PRESENT Councillors Richard Stogdon (Chair) 
 Councillors Barry Taylor (Vice Chair), Bob Bowdler, Godfrey Daniel, 

Kathryn Field, Tom Liddiard and Pat Rodohan 
 

   
 
 
 
15 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 11 SEPTEMBER 2019  
 
15.1 The Committee RESOLVED to approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting 
held on 11 September 2019.   
 
 
16 DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS  
 
16.1 Councillor Godfrey Daniel declared a prejudicial interest in part of Item 5D, with that 
being Site 2 – Laton Road, Hastings, as he knew the Objector, and withdrew from the Chamber 
during consideration of this site.   
 
 
17 REPORTS  
 
17.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 
 
 
18 TRO - DEFERMENT OF CONSIDERATION OF OBJECTIONS TO THE REVOCATION 
OF THE LEWES TOWN 2007 TRAFFIC ORDERS  
 
18.1 The Committee considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport, together with the written comments of the Local Member in support of the 
Recommendations.  
 
18.2 Ms Jennifer Leeburn spoke about her objection to the revocation of the Lewes Town 
2007 Traffic Orders.   
 
18.3  Members have considered the report and comments of the public speaker and Local 
Member, and agree with the conclusion set out in paragraph 3 of the report.   
 
18.4 The Committee RESOLVED to (1) uphold the objections to the revocation of the 2007 
Orders; and  
 
(2) recommend to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport that the revocation of 
the 2007 Traffic Regulation Orders is not undertaken at this time and that the draft Traffic 
Regulation Order be made in part.   
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

 

19 TRO - EXTENSION OF THE EXISTING 30MPH SPEED LIMIT ON CHURCH ROAD, 
CATSFIELD  
 
19.1 The Head of Planning and Environment confirmed that the objection to the proposed 
Order had been withdrawn, and that consequently there was nothing for the Committee to 
consider, and that the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport could proceed to make 
the Order as advertised.   
 
 
20 TRO - FRIENDS MEETING HOUSE CAR PARK, STYLES FIELD, LEWES  
 
20.1 The Committee considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport.  
 
20.2 Members have considered the officer’s report and agree with the conclusion as set out in 
paragraph 3.   
 
20.3  The Committee RESOLVED to (1) not uphold the objection to the draft Order; and  
 
(2) recommend to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport that the Traffic 
Regulation Order be made as advertised.  
 
 
21 TRO - HASTINGS PARKING REVIEW 2018-19  
 
21.1 The Committee considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport.  
 
21.2  Councillor Daniel, the Local Member for Site 2, withdrew from the Chamber during 
consideration of that part of the item.  
 
21.3 Councillor Daniel, the Local Member for Site 3, spoke in support of the Recommendation 
not to uphold the objection.  
 
21.4 Members have considered the report and comments of the Local Member, and agree 
with the conclusions set out in paragraph 3 of the report.  
 
21.5 The Committee RESOLVED to (1) not uphold the objections to the draft Order set out in 
Appendix 1 of the report; and  
 
(2) recommend to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport that the Traffic 
Regulation Order be made as advertised.  
 
 
 
 
22 DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT MATTERS QUARTERLY REPORT  
 
22.1 The Committee considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport.  
 
22.2 The Committee RESOLVED to note the report and thank the officers concerned.    
 
 
 

Page 4



 
Committee:  Regulatory  

Planning Committee 
 

Date: 18 December 2019 
 

Report by: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
 

Proposal: Variation of Condition 2 (Approved drawings) of 
planning permission RR/741/CM seeking retrospective 
permission for amendments to the layout and fencing at 
the pumping station at Fourteen Acre Lane.  
 

Site Address: Three Oaks Wastewater Pumping Station, Fourteen Acre 
Lane, Three Oaks 
 

Applicant: Southern Water Services Ltd 
 

Application No. RR/834/CM 
 

Key Issues: (i) Purpose of the development 
(ii) Effect on amenity 
(iii) Effect on High Weald AONB 

 
Contact 
Officer:     
 

Jeremy Patterson – Tel: 01273 481626 

Local Member:  
    

Councillor Carl Maynard 

 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. To grant planning permission subject to the completion of a 
variation to the s106 Agreement dated 30 June 2016 between East 
Sussex County Council, Southern Water Services Limited and Gordon 
Harrison and the s278 Agreement dated 7 June 2018 between the same 
parties and to conditions as set out  in paragraph 8.1 of this report. 
 

 
CONSIDERATION BY DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITIES, ECONOMY AND 
TRANSPORT 
 
1. The Site and Surroundings 

1.1 The development to construct a first time sewerage scheme in the 
village of Three Oaks involves two sites at either end of the village, the 
treatment works site off Butcher’s Lane to the south-west and the pumping 
station site in Fourteen Acre Lane to the north-east. However, although a new 
planning permission will be required to be issued for the overall development, 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5A



if approval is granted, this application only considers proposed changes to the 
development involving the pumping station site. 
 
1.2 The pumping station is located in Fourteen Acre Lane, a short distance 
to the north-west from its junction with Butcher’s Lane. It stands opposite the 
residential property of Willow Stream. Other residential properties are located 
nearby along Fourteen Acre Lane to the north-west and to the south-west in 
Willow Stream Close. The site is within the High Weald Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty (AONB).  
 
2. Site History 

2.1 A first time sewerage scheme was granted planning permission (ref. 
RR/741/CM) in July 2016 following the completion of a legal agreement to 
carry out highway works and is subject to conditions. As previously noted, the 
development involves two sites: the treatment works adjacent to Sailors 
Stream off Butcher’s Lane and the pumping station at the upper end of the 
village in Fourteen Acre Lane. Works have commenced at the treatment 
works site but most of the development has yet to be undertaken. The 
pumping station site is complete for operational purposes. 
 

3. The Proposal 

3.1 This planning application has been submitted following a review of the 
development by the applicant, which arose as a result of concerns raised by a 
local resident regarding the size and location of the kiosk at the pumping 
station. The applicant found discrepancies between the approved drawings 
and the development as-built, in relation to the footprint of the operational 
compound and its associated fencing. 
 
3.2 The pumping station site is about 100 square metres in area and 
includes below ground chambers containing submersible pumps. Above 
ground, it comprises a fenced compound, including areas of hardstanding, 
covered hatches, a kiosk housing control equipment and a lay-by allowing 
vehicular access. The pumping station was constructed between February 
2018 and June 2019 and is operational. All proposed changes fall within the 
original planning application boundary under permission RR/741/CM. 
 
3.3 The current proposal is seeking retrospective planning permission (as 
the development has already been undertaken) to vary Condition 2 of 
planning permission RR/741/CM, which refers to the approved drawings. This 
relates specifically to a change of use to a small area (43 square metres) of 
land adjoining the existing fenced compound, so that it can also be included 
as operational land, and the associated fencing arrangements, which involve 
an extension to the 1.8 metres high weld mesh security fencing and the 1.2 
metres high post and rail boundary fencing.  
 
 

 

Page 6



4. Consultations and Representations  
 
4.1 Rother District Council raises no objections, subject to the landscaping 
of the area after the removal of the temporary construction compound. 
 
4.2 Guestling Parish Council expresses disappointment that not enough 
attention has been paid to this development in the AONB. Policies WMP23a 
and WMP25 of the Waste and Minerals Plan, regarding design and amenity 
respectively, have been ignored. Hedgerows and a timber screen have not 
been implemented. 
 
4.3 Flood Risk Management ESCC has no comments.  
 
4.4 High Weald AONB Officer notes that the development is considered to 
be of poor visual quality and detrimental to the character of the High Weald 
AONB. The proposed mitigation measures will improve this impact subject to 
the following: (i) The High Weald Colour Study should be used to select the 
colour of the timber screen around the kiosk and the close board fencing so 
that they are appropriate to the setting of the High Weald AONB landscape; 
and (ii) Native, locally sourced plants should be used for the additional 
hedgerow to support wildlife and avoid contamination. 
 
4.5 Local representations: Three local residents object to the proposal for 
reasons which can be summarised as follows: (i) The development is not the 
same as originally approved; (ii) The loss of visual amenity; (iii) The effect on 
property values; (iv) The effect on the AONB; and (v) The use of vehicles on 
the lay-by has become a commercial parking area.  
 
5. The Development Plan and other policies of relevance to this 

decision are: 
 
5.1 East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan 2013: Policies: WMP10 (Management of waste water and sewage 
sludge); WMP23a (Design principles); WMP25 (General amenity); WMP27 
(Environment). 
 
5.2 Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014: Policies: OSS4 (General 
development considerations); RA3(v) (Development in the countryside); EN1 
(Landscape stewardship). 
 
5.3 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019 
 
The NPPF is a material consideration in the determination of planning 
applications but does not change the status of the Development Plan as the 
starting point in decision making. Parts 12 (Achieving well-designed places) 
and 15 (Conserving and enhancing the natural environment) are relevant.   
 
 
 
 

Page 7



5.4 The High Weald AONB Management Plan 2019-2014 
 
In broad terms, the Plan defines the natural beauty of the AONB and identifies 
the key components of the High Weald. It then sets objectives for these 
components and identifies actions that could conserve and enhance the 
AONB. Objective S3, which refers to the use of the High Weald Colour Study, 
is relevant. 
 
6. Considerations 
 
Purpose of the development 
 
6.1 Under planning permission RR/741/CM, approval was granted for a 
pumping station in Fourteen Acre Lane to manage waste water flows from the 
higher, north-eastern side of the village into the valley to the south-west. 
According to the applicant, the detailed design of the development, which 
followed the permission, led to an extension of the approved operational area 
in order to incorporate a safer layout of equipment and access hatches to 
below ground structures. These health and safety requirements also affected 
the type of kiosk which was required and resulted in a larger unit being 
installed than was originally anticipated.  
 
6.2 The principle of the development has been established under planning 
permission RR/741/CM and the current proposal is similar in purpose to the 
approved scheme. Changes in health and safety standards have led to 
changes to the layout of the compound, including the associated fencing, as 
well as the specification of plant. In operational terms, the development is 
essential to meet the requirements of the first time sewerage scheme and, as 
such, is supported by Policy WMP10 of the Waste and Minerals Plan in 
managing waste water. 
 
Effect on amenity 
 
6.3 Policy WMP25 of the Waste and Minerals Plan requires, inter alia, that 
proposals should have no unacceptable effect on the standard of amenity 
appropriate to the established land uses of the local and host communities 
likely to be affected by the development. Policy OSS4 of the Rother Core 
Strategy also requires development not to unreasonably harm the amenities 
of adjoining properties. 
 
6.4 The pumping station, as built, is a stark development in close proximity 
to residential properties in Fourteen Acre Lane. Representations from the 
occupiers of Willow Stream opposite the site, together with two other 
residents from the village and the Parish Council, refer to the development not 
being in accordance with what was approved, the detrimental visual impact, 
and the intrusion of vehicles parking in the lay-by. 
 
6.5  There is little doubt that the development is visually intrusive in the 
immediate locality, particularly to the occupiers of Willow Stream, which has 
resulted in an adverse effect on amenity. This impact appears to be centred 

Page 8



on the size and location of the kiosk, which is larger and in a more prominent 
position than originally foreseen. However, this type of kiosk is permitted 
development, which means it is able to be constructed without the need to 
inform the planning authority, despite the potential advantages of doing so. 
Given the nature of the public response to the development, the applicant has 
proposed mitigation, involving hedgerow planting within and outside the 
compound fence, timber screening around three sides of the kiosk and close 
boarded fencing on the inside of the front gates. With appropriate design and 
colour, the timber screening and close boarded fencing will make the 
compound less visually intrusive, although effective screening will only be 
likely to be achieved once the hedgerows have matured. 
 
6.6 Although it is acknowledged that that the kiosk does have an adverse 
effect, the County Council, as Waste Planning Authority (WPA), is unable to 
control this part of the development, as it does not require express planning 
permission. Despite that, the proposed mitigation and recommended 
conditions should reduce the effects of the overall development, particularly in 
the longer term. 
 
6.7 Although the current scheme is different compared to the scheme 
under permission RR/741/CM, this has come about following a more detailed 
design process by the applicant, which can only be carried out nearer to the 
time of construction. The extension to the operational area and its associated 
fencing, which require express planning permission and are the subject of this 
application, are not considered to result in an adverse visual effect.  
 
6.8 In terms of the use of the lay-by for parking, this facility is necessary to 
allow the use of the pumping station by the applicant. Providing the site is 
being used appropriately, the WPA is unable to restrict its use.     
 
 
 
 
Effect on AONB 
 
6.9 Policy WMP27 of the Waste and Minerals Plan seeks to conserve and 
enhance the local character and environment of the High Weald AONB. Policy 
RA3(v) of the Rother Core Strategy aims to ensure that all development in the 
countryside is of an appropriate scale and will not adversely impact the 
landscape character of the countryside, while Policy EN1 requires the 
protection and wherever possible enhancement of the landscape character of 
the AONB. Part 15 of the NPPF also seeks to protect and enhance valued 
landscapes with great weight being given to AONBs in relation to landscape 
and scenic beauty. The High Weald AONB Management Plan seeks to 
conserve and enhance natural beauty within the AONB.      
 
6.10 Overall, the development is visually intrusive and does nothing to 
protect and enhance the landscape and character of the AONB. Despite that, 
the development represents essential infrastructure to facilitate the first time 
sewerage scheme for the village and the applicant is proposing to reduce the 

Page 9



effect of the development through mitigation. While, in principle, the proposed 
mitigation is supported, further detailing is required regarding the species to 
be planted and the type of timber screen and close boarded fencing to be 
used around the kiosk and front gates, respectively, e.g. using a ‘hit and miss’ 
style (i.e. alternately fixed boards) barrier would be more beneficial than an 
even structure. Moreover, the colour of the structures will be important and 
the High Weald Colour Study, recommended by the AONB Unit, should be 
used to identify the most appropriate colours for this location and a condition 
has been included to this effect. 
 
7. Conclusion and reasons for approval 
 
7.1 In accordance with Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 the decision on this application should be taken in 
accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
 
7.2 The proposal is to vary Condition 2 of planning permission RR/741/CM 
to allow a change to the layout of the operational area at the pumping station 
by extending the fenced compound. Although the development has already 
been carried out, the slightly enlarged compound and fencing is unlikely to 
have a significant visual effect in the locality. However, the installation of a 
kiosk does have an adverse visual effect but as this is permitted development, 
no planning controls to affect its location or size can be imposed. Despite that, 
the applicant is proposing to mitigate the overall development and 
recommended conditions seek to enhance and secure this mitigation. The 
development requiring express planning permission is considered to be 
acceptable and accords with Policy WMP10 of the East Sussex, South Downs 
and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013 and the policies in the 
Development Plan and the NPPF to protect the AONB. The kiosk, which does 
not require express permission but has the greatest visual effect, can be 
mitigated with appropriate materials and colours, although effective screening 
would likely only occur once the hedging becomes established.   
 
7.3 In determining this planning application, the County Council has 
worked with the applicant and agent in a positive and proactive manner. The 
Council has also sought views from consultees and neighbours and has 
considered these in preparing the recommendation. This approach has been 
taken positively and proactively in accordance with the requirement in the 
NPPF, and as set out in the Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015. 
 
7.4 There are no other material considerations and the decision should be 
taken in accordance with the Development Plan.  
 
8. Recommendation 
 
8.1 To recommend the Planning Committee to grant planning permission 
subject to the completion of a variation to the s106 Agreement dated 30 June 
2016 between East Sussex County Council, Southern Water Services Limited 

Page 10



and Gordon Harrison and the s278 Agreement dated 7 June 2018 between 
the same parties and to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the drawings listed in the Schedule of Approved Plans. 
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 

planning. 
 
2. Notwithstanding the planting and landscaping details submitted for the 

pumping station site, further details of the planting scheme shall be 
submitted to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport for 
written approval within one month of the date of the planning permission. 
The approved details shall be carried out in full during the first available 
planting season following approval. 

  
 Reason: To secure appropriate landscaping at the site in the interests of 

the amenity of the locality and the landscape character of the AONB, in 
accordance with Policies WMP25 and WMP27 of the East Sussex, South 
Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013.   

  
3. Within one month of the date of the planning permission, the applicant 

shall submit details in writing to the Director of Communities, Economy 
and Transport for written approval for the design of the proposed close 
boarded fencing on the front gates and the timber screen around the 
kiosk at the pumping station including a timetable for their installation. 
The details shall demonstrate that the High Weald Colour Study (2017) 
has been used to assist in the identification of colours for the structures 
at the pumping station site in Fourteen Acre Lane. The approved details 
shall be carried out in full. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the landscape of the High 

Weald AONB, in accordance with Policies WMP25 and WMP27 of the 
East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan 2013. 

 
4. Planting and landscaping works at the treatment works site off Butcher's 

Lane shall not be carried out except in accordance with the following 
documents: 

 (i) Technical Note, dated 23 March 2017, Atkins; 
 (ii) Landscape Proposals Plan, ref: 5105602_WA_611 Rev G; 
 (iii) Arboricultural Implications Assessment, ref: 7637/D/001 Version 1.1, 

Johns Associates; and 
 (iv) Tree Protection plan, ref: 7637_S1_4_3.2 Rev A, Johns Associates.  
  
 Reason: To ensure appropriate planting and landscaping of the site and 

protection of retained trees and woodland, in accordance with Policy 
WMP27 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste 
and Minerals Plan 2013. 

 

Page 11



5. Notwithstanding the terms of Condition 4 and prior to any further works 
at the treatment works site off Butcher's Lane, the applicant shall submit 
details in writing to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
for approval which demonstrates that the High Weald Colour Study 
(2017) has been used to assist in the identification of colours for the 
structures at the treatment works site. The approved details shall be 
carried out in full. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the landscape of the High 

Weald AONB, in accordance with Policies WMP25 and WMP27 of the 
East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan 2013. 

 
6. Any trees, shrubs or other plants which are planted as part of the 

landscaping requirements which within a period of five years die, are 
removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in 
the next planting season with others of similar species, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing with the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport. 

  
 Reason: To secure appropriate landscaping at the site in the interests of 

the amenity of the locality and the landscape character of the AONB, in 
accordance with Policy WMP27 of the East Sussex, South Downs and 
Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013.   

  
7. The measures detailed in the documents listed under Condition 6 

(Habitats and species) of planning permission RR/741/CM as set out in 
the letter from East Sussex County Council to Paris Smith, dated 21 
November 2016, shall be implemented in full. 

  
 Reason: To secure appropriate protection of species, including mitigation 

and compensation for loss of habitat, in accordance with Policy WMP27 
of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and 
Minerals Plan 2013.  

 
8. No further works shall take place at the treatment works site including 

the access onto Butcher's Lane until details have been submitted to the 
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport for written approval on 
how traffic will be managed at the site and within the locality. The 
approved details shall be implemented in full. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of persons in 

the locality, in accordance with Policies WMP25 and WMP26 of the East 
Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 
2013. 

 
9. The new access from Butcher's Lane to the treatment plant shall be 

undertaken in the position shown on drawing number 121875-C-800011 
Rev D approved under planning permission RR/741/CM and shall be 
constructed and laid out in accordance with the HT407 diagram, dated 

Page 12



22 September 2015, and all works undertaken shall be executed and 
completed with the agreement of the Highway Authority prior to the 
commencement of the use of the development hereby permitted, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing with the Director of Communities, Economy 
and Transport. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the safety of persons and drivers of vehicles 

entering and leaving the access and using the highway, in accordance 
with Policy WMP26 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & 
Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013. 

 
10. The proposed gate at the new access to the treatment works off 

Butcher's Lane shall be positioned at least 10 metres back from the edge 
of the highway. 

  
 Reason: To enable a vehicle to wait clear of the highway while the gate 

is being operated in the interests of highway safety, in accordance with 
Policy WMP26 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove 
Waste and Minerals Plan 2013.   

 
11. The development shall not be used until a turning space for vehicles has 

been provided and constructed in accordance with drawing number 
121875-C-800011 Rev D and the turning space shall thereafter be 
retained for that use and shall not be used for any other purpose, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing with the Director of Communities, Economy 
and Transport. 

  
 Reason: To provide for a sufficient turning area within the site for safety 

reasons, in accordance with Policy WMP26 of the East Sussex, South 
Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013. 

 
12. No machinery shall be operated, no process shall be carried out and no 

deliveries taken to or despatched from the development sites on land off 
Butcher's Lane and Fourteen Acre Lane during the period of construction 
other than between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Mondays to Fridays 
inclusive and 07.30 to 13.00 on Saturdays, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing with the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport. There 
shall be no working at these sites on Sundays or Bank and Public 
Holidays, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Director of 
Communities, Economy and Transport. 

  
 Reason: To safeguard the amenity of persons in the locality, in 

accordance with Policy WMP25 of the East Sussex, South Downs and 
Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013. 

 
13. All construction activities shall be managed in accordance with British 

Standard 5228-1: 2009 (code of practice for noise and vibration control 
on construction and open sites - Part 1: noise) or such updated British 
Standard as may be issued in place of British Standard 5228-1: 2009. 

  

Page 13



 Reason: To ensure that the relevant British Standard trigger levels are 
not exceeded in the interests of protecting the amenity of persons in the 
locality, in accordance with Policy WMP25 of the East Sussex, South 
Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013. 

 
14. The operational noise rating level shall, at all times, be below 30 dBLAeq 

(freefield), determined at the nearest noise sensitive receptors, namely 
Sailor's Stream Cottage in Butcher's Lane and the Willow Stream 
residential property in Fourteen Acre Lane, and in accordance with 
British Standard 4142: 2014. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of protecting the amenity of persons in the 

locality in accordance with Policy WMP25 of the East Sussex, South 
Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013. 

 
15. Within 3 months of first commencement of the operational use of the 

wastewater treatment works, a noise monitoring report shall be 
submitted to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport for 
approval. The report should demonstrate that the development complies 
with the noise restriction of Condition 14. If the development does not 
comply, the report should propose further measures for noise mitigation 
and a timetable of implementation to reduce noise to meet the restriction 
of Condition 14. 

  
 Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of nearby residential 

properties in accordance with Policy WMP25 of the East Sussex, South 
Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013.   

 
16. No further development shall take place at the treatment works site until 

details of surface water management at the treatment works off 
Butcher's Lane have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport which shall include:  

 
(i) Detailed hydraulic calculations which should take into account the 
connectivity of the different drainage features. They should show a 'like 
for like' discharge rate between the existing and proposed 1 in 1, 1 in 
30 and 1 in 100 rainfall events, including an allowance for climate 
change; 
(ii) Provision for catchpits upstream of cellular storage structures to 
prevent sediment build-up; and 
(iii) Specifications of the measures to line any surface water storage 
facilities to prevent groundwater ingress.  

  
 Prior to the development being brought into use, the approved details 

relating to points (i) to (iii) above shall be implemented in full, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing with the Director of Communities, Economy 
and Transport. 

  

Page 14



 Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding, in accordance with Policy 
WMP28a of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste 
and Minerals Plan 2013.   

 
17. No further development shall take place at the treatment works site until 

a management and maintenance plan for the entire drainage system 
associated with the development has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport. The 
approved plan shall be implemented in full. 

  
 Reason: To secure the proper management and maintenance of the 

drainage system to reduce the risk of flooding, in accordance with Policy 
WMP28a of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste 
and Minerals Plan 2013. 

 
18. The affected part of the Guestling 32a public footpath shall be 

accommodated on land to the south of Butcher's Lane in accordance 
with drawing number 121875-C-200001 Rev D. 

  
 Reason: To secure an appropriate specification for the footpath which 

will be affected by the development in accordance with Policy WMP25 of 
the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan 2013. 

 
19. No artificial external lighting, including floodlighting, shall be installed or 

used in relation to construction and operations other than in accordance 
with details first submitted to and approved in writing by the Director of 
Communities, Economy and Transport. Such details should include 
reference to guidance from the Bat Conservation Trust.  

  
 Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the locality and the local 

natural environment, in accordance with Policies WMP25 and WMP27b 
of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and 
Minerals Plan 2013.  

 
20. Notwithstanding the provisions of The Town and Country Planning 

(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, or in any 
amendment thereof, no development shall take place under Part 13 
Class B (d), unless otherwise first agreed in writing with the Director of 
Communities, Economy and Transport. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the locality and the High Weald 

AONB, in accordance with Policies WMP25 and WMP27 of the East 
Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 
2013 and Policies OSS4 and EN1 of the Rother Local Plan Core 
Strategy 2014.   

 
 INFORMATIVES 
 
1. The Applicant's attention is drawn to the need to obtain: 

Page 15



  
 Ordinary Watercourse Consent from East Sussex County Council, as 

Lead Local Flood Authority, regarding any works affecting the cross 
section of the stream or the flow of water. 

 
 
 
2. The Applicant's attention is drawn to the provisions of:- 
  
 The Badgers Act 1992 and The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as 

amended, in exercising any activities associated with the development. 
  
Schedule of Approved Plans 
 
Site Location Plan 121875-C-800010 Rev A, Pumping Station Overall Layout 
JN.497390.0C2901 Rev E, Pumping Station Elevations JN.497390.0Z0714 
Rev C, Proposed Wastewater Treatment Works Elevation 121875-C-800012 
Rev 0.4, Standby Generator Kiosk 121875-C-800018 Rev 01, Proposed 
SAFF Blower and MCC Kiosk Plan 121875-C-900016 Rev 01, Proposed 
SAFF Blower and MCC Kiosk Elevations 121875-C-800017 Rev 03, 
Topographical Land and Drainage Survey SDS 202830.04 Rev C , Proposed 
Sewerage Layout (Sheet 1 of 2) 5105602/WA/210 Rev D, Proposed 
Sewerage Layout (Sheet 2 of 2) 5105602/WA/211 Rev D, Proposed 
Wastewater Treatment Works Site Plan 121875-C-800011 Rev D, Proposed 
Wastewater Treatment Works Elevation (West) 121875-C-800013 Rev B, 
Landscape Proposals Plan 5105602_WA_611 Rev G, Tree Protection 
7637_S1_4_3.2 Rev A, Site Plan 121875-C-200001 Rev D 
 
 

RUPERT CLUBB 
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
10 December 2019 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Application RR/834/CM 
Planning permission RR/741/CM 
The Development Plan 
The National Planning Policy Framework 2019 
The High Weald Management Plan 2019 
 

Page 16



Amberdene

Woodside

Fairlight View

Panorama

Morgay Wood

Woodstock

Droxters

Bank
Spring

Spring Cottage

Sunrise

BUTCHER'S LANE

Tudor Cottage

Kalamunda

Meadowsweet

Ellendene

Higham

Pond

Graff
iti

The Bield

Walnut

Halfhouse

Sunny

Poplar

Mary's

Pond

50.0m

Cottage

4

CottsThe

Cotts

Santos

2

Croft

Cattle

Badgers

St M
arg

are
ts

Eashalbub

Path (um)Roselea

New

Rosedene

Three Oaks

Sussex House

Meadow
Cott

Ivanhoe

Heath Lea

The Limes

The Firs

1

Wharfe
dale

Granville

Bethune

Birchwood

Farm

Benestede
FB

1

Little Acorns

Farthings
Three

Grid

41.2m

NewoaksPa
th 

(um
)

New

Pheasants

Path (um)

The Coppice

Cottage
Orchard

Meadow Croft

MORGAY WOOD LANE

Rose Cott

Track

Path (um)

Collects

FB

WILLOW

Path (um)

CLOSE

Track

Store

Pond
STREAM

Path (um)

LB

Tra
ck

Plashett Farm

Thatchlan
ds

Ponds

Hill V
iew

Tragumna

Grain

46.4m

47.1m

Tiffe
nden

GP

FOURTEEN ACRE LANE

The Doone

1

5

Laburnums

Three Oaks

Willow

Little Maxfield

43.9m

Stream

RR/834/CM
Three Oaks Wastewater Pumping Station, Fourteen Acre Lane, Three Oaks

Rupert Clubb   BEng (Hons) CEng MICE, Director
of Communities, Economy and Transport, East
Sussex County Council

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. East Sussex County

Location Plan

Site

0 4 82 Kilometers

0 160 32080 Meters̄

Application Site

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



RR/834/CM
Three Oaks Wastewater Pumping Station, Fourteen Acre Lane, Three Oaks

Rupert Clubb   BEng (Hons) CEng MICE, Director of
Communities, Economy and Transport, East Sussex
County Council

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings. East Sussex County Council, 100019601, 2017

Location Plan

Site

0 4 82 Kilometers

0 590 1,180295 Meters̄

Application Site

Application Site

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
Committee:  Regulatory  

Planning Committee 
 

Date: 18 December 2019 
 

Report by: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
 

Proposal: Retention of deposited inert building waste 
 

Site Address: Appletree Cottage, Beacon Lane, Staplecross, 
Robertsbridge, TN32 5QP 
 

Applicant: Mr H Willing  
 

Application No. RR/828/CM 
 

Key Issues: (i) Effect of waste in woodland within the High 
Weald  

(ii) Effect on amenity  
 

Contact Officer:     
 

Jeremy Patterson: Tel: 01273 481626 

Local Member:  
    

Councillor Angharad Davies 

 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. The Committee is recommended to refuse planning permission 
for the reasons set out at paragraph 8.1 and authorise the Director of 
Communities, Economy and Transport, in consultation with the 
Assistant Chief Executive, Governance Service, to undertake 
appropriate enforcement action to require the removal of the waste. 
 

CONSIDERATION BY DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITIES, ECONOMY AND 
TRANSPORT 

 
1. The Site and Surroundings 

1.1 The application site is in a rural location within the High Weald Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). The site comprises a small area of 
woodland 100 metres to the east of the residential property known as 
‘Appletree Cottage’. The site is some 700 metres to the north-east of Cripps 
Corner and 850 metres to the south-east of Staplecross. The woodland 
comprising the application site is not designated ancient woodland but ancient 
woodland is proximate to the site and is contiguous with it. The western side 
of a pond is also affected by the proposal, with the eastern part of the pond 
included within the ancient woodland designation.  
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5B



1.2 A residential property, known as ‘The Barn’, is present just to the 
south-west of the application site on the opposite side of a track. This track 
leads eastwards from Beacon Lane (200 metres from the application site) and 
provides vehicular access to Appletree Cottage and The Barn, together with 
‘Wish House’ and ‘Miles Farm’, which are located further east. The track is 
also a public footpath (Ewhurst 34a), which forks some 130 metres to the east 
of the application site into public footpaths Ewhurst 34b and 32a.   
 
2. The Proposal 

2.1 The proposal is to retain deposited waste, which has arisen following 
building works at the neighbouring property, The Barn. According to the 
applicant, the waste involves about 60 tonnes of material, which was tipped 
over a steep embankment into woodland, mostly during April 2019. A 5 
metres section of mature hedgerow was removed to facilitate the tipping. The 
waste includes concrete, sand and rubble and as well as retaining it ‘in situ’, 
the applicant is proposing to import top soils to cover it. 
 
3. Site History 

3.1 None of relevance. 
 
4. Consultations and Representations  
 
4.1 Rother District Council raises objections on the grounds that: (i) The 
deposited material is in close proximity to ancient woodland and within an 
area of mature trees. The waste is likely to lead to damage and soil 
compaction around the tree roots and an increase in pollution, which may 
have long term impacts, not only on the trees but also on landscape character 
and scenic beauty of the AONB; (ii) The retention of the waste could have an 
adverse impact on ecology within the woodland and pond; and (iii) The 
retention of waste could set a precedent which could encourage other similar 
proposals in unsuitable locations in the countryside. 
 
4.2 Ewhurst Parish Council has not submitted any observations. 
 
4.3 The Environment Agency notes that, inter alia, any waste deposit or 
transfer, if not already covered by an exemption or other authorisation, will 
require an Environmental Permit. The operator will need to demonstrate that 
the protection of any watercourses and all pollution risks are being managed. 
If the development requires the permanent deposit of waste to land, a deposit 
for recovery or landfill permit may be required. 
 
4.4 Flood Risk Management ESCC raises no objection.  
 
4.5 High Weald AONB Officer raises objections on the grounds that: (i) The 
development is a substantial change in landform contrary to objective G2 of 
the High Weald AONB Management Plan; (ii) The development is likely to 
have caused and will cause in the future damage to the ecological functioning 
of the woodland, adjacent pond and ecological network along the routeway 

Page 22



contrary to objectives G1, W1, W2 and R2 of the Management Plan; and (iii) 
The deposit of construction waste alongside an historic routeway, which is a 
public right of way, is likely to detract from the enjoyment of the users of this 
routeway and affect their experience of the naturalness of the AONB, contrary 
to objectives OQ3 and OQ4. 
 
4.6 Local representations: None received. 
 
5. The Development Plan and other policies of relevance to this 

decision are: 
 
5.1 East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan 2013: Policies: WMP25 (General amenity); WMP27 (Environment). 
 
5.2 Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014: Policies: OSS4 (General 
development considerations); RA2 (General strategy for the countryside); 
RA3 (Development in the countryside); EN1 (Landscape stewardship); EN5 
(Biodiversity and green space).  
 
5.3 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019 
 
The NPPF is a material consideration in the determination of planning 
applications but does not change the status of the Development Plan as the 
starting point in decision making. Part 15 (Conserving and enhancing the 
natural environment) is relevant. 
 
5.4 The High Weald AONB Management Plan 2019-2024 
 
In broad terms, the Plan defines the natural beauty of the AONB and identifies 
the key landscape components of the High Weald. It then sets objectives for 
these components and identifies actions that could conserve and enhance the 
AONB. Objectives G1, G2, W1, W2, OQ3 and OQ4 are relevant. 
 
6. Considerations 
 
Effect of waste in woodland within the High Weald 
 

(i) AONB landscape 
 
6.1 Due to the sensitive location of the site, the application is accompanied 
by an Arboricultural and Ecological Impact Assessment Report, which 
comprises: (i) A tree survey for all trees with a stem diameter of 75mm or 
more and the hedgerow, which have been impacted by the deposited 
material, and which are likely to be impacted by any subsequent operations to 
remove the deposited material; and (ii) An ecological survey, which relates to 
those ecologically sensitive habitats within the woodland, which have been 
impacted by the deposited material, and which are likely to be impacted by 
any subsequent operations to remove the material.  
 

Page 23



6.2 Policy WMP27 of the Waste and Minerals Plan seeks to conserve and 
enhance the local character and environment of the High Weald AONB. 
Policies RA2 and RA3 of the Rother Core Strategy seek to conserve the 
intrinsic value, locally distinctive rural character, landscape features and the 
natural and ecological resources of the countryside, while Policy EN1 requires 
the protection and, wherever possible, enhancement of the landscape 
character of the AONB. Part 15 of the NPPF also requires the protection and 
enhancement of valued landscapes with great weight being given to AONBs 
in relation to landscape and scenic beauty. The High Weald AONB 
Management Plan seeks, inter alia, to maintain the existing extent of 
woodland and particularly ancient woodland.       
 
6.3 The application site is within woodland in the rural countryside of the 
High Weald AONB. This generally comprises a canopy of oak, ash and beech 
with an understorey, including hawthorn, hazel and holly. The ground level 
plant species include ivy and dog’s mercury. The affected pond is recorded on 
the Ordnance Survey Epoch 1 (1863-1894) base map, and therefore has a 
long association with the woodland. Two other ponds are located nearby 
within the ancient woodland. 
 
6.4 The waste materials have been tipped from the top of a steep 
embankment into the woodland below, thereby covering the surface, including 
the western edge of the pond, and smothering the bases of trees. A section of 
mature hedgerow has been removed to facilitate the tipping. The steep 
wooded slope of the site and woodland pond are characteristic features of this 
part of the High Weald. The deposited material is alien to the site and local 
area and has a detracting influence on the rural setting, thereby having an 
adverse effect on the character of the AONB. 
 
6.5 The deposited material has been sited against the stems of a number 
of trees and within the root protection areas (RPAs) of other trees, causing 
physical damage to stems and branches and potential compaction damage to 
the underlying roots. This means that it will adversely affect the available 
oxygen to surface roots and cause trees to die in the longer term. Some of 
these trees are in the highest value categorisation, as identified following the 
assessment carried out as part of the applicant’s tree survey. As well as the 
trees, the deposit has destroyed characteristic woodland ground flora. 
 
6.6 The deposit of waste has been carried out with no regard having been 
given to the interests of the woodland as part of the landscape of the AONB. 
The development has damaged trees and other vegetation and adversely 
affected the pond and will, if retained, likely result in further damage to the 
woodland. The development conflicts wholly with policies in the Development 
Plan, the NPPF and the High Weald AONB Management Plan to protect and 
enhance the interests of the AONB landscape.  
 

(ii) Ecological issues 
 
6.7 Policy WMP27 of the Waste and Minerals Plan seeks to conserve and 
enhance the natural environment and Policy EN5 of the Rother Core Strategy 

Page 24



seeks to ensure that development retains, protects and enhances habitats of 
ecological interest, including ancient woodland, water features and hedgerows 
and provides for appropriate management of these features. The NPPF states 
that the planning system should contribute to and enhance the natural and 
local environment by, inter alia, protecting sites of biodiversity value and 
minimising impacts. The High Weald AONB Management Plan seeks to 
enhance the ecological quality and functioning of woodland at a landscape 
scale, to maintain the extent of woodland and enhance the ecological function 
of routeways.     
 
6.8 As previously set out, the site is within woodland and forms part of a 
larger stand of woodland, most of which is designated ancient woodland. The 
deposition of waste is outside but close to the ancient woodland and the base 
of the pile has encroached on the western side of the pond. There is 
connectivity from the site to other areas of woodland in the wider landscape 
via hedgerows and treelines, providing corridors for wildlife.  
 
6.9 The waste in the pond has smothered bankside vegetation, increasing 
turbidity and potentially reducing water quality. The long-term effects of 
leachates from the waste have not been assessed and are unknown but could 
be significant. The woodland has high potential for roosting bats, dormice, 
breeding birds, reptiles and badgers and the pond for amphibians, including 
Great Crested Newts. The deposition of waste is likely to have damaged 
habitat for this wildlife and may have led to the disturbance or death / injury for 
some species, particularly reptiles and amphibians. Moreover, the on-going 
impacts from the waste will be likely to result in disturbance and damage to 
egg laying habitat for amphibians, declining water quality, damage to ground 
flora and the potential loss of additional trees. 
 
6.10 The deposit of waste has been carried out with no regard having been 
given to the interests of the woodland as part of the ecological resource of the 
AONB. As with the impact on the landscape, the development fundamentally 
conflicts with policies in the Development Plan, the NPPF and the High Weald 
AONB Management Plan to protect and enhance the natural resource of the 
AONB. 
 

(iii)  Remediation 
 
6.11 The applicant’s Arboricultural and Ecological Impact Assessment 
Report sets out a method for removing the waste. This would involve the 
creation of an access track for plant and machinery through the woodland 
along the route of an old track to the base of the waste pile. The track would 
be constructed of aggregate spread over a geo-textile fabric laid into the 
ground. Three trees would need to be removed, although these are identified 
with a low value categorisation, and some pruning of other trees would be 
required due to overhanging branches. The track would also be likely to 
encroach on some RPAs of adjoining trees and route alongside parts of 
ancient woodland. Despite the limited effects of the access track on the 
woodland, the applicant’s Report considers that retention of the waste would 
be preferable. The Report cites that removal would have a likely greater effect 

Page 25



on the woodland, would cause damage to more trees and other habitats and 
result in potential disturbance, death or injury to protected species. 
 
6.12 Although the Report recommends that topsoil should be imported to 
cover the waste, it also recommends that certain remediation works are 
carried out, due to the potential adverse effects the waste is having on the 
woodland and pond habitats: (i) Removing the waste by hand from around the 
bases of 8 trees to provide a minimum radius of 1 metre clearance to 
minimise damage to the tree roots and stem bases and for this to be 
undertaken between April and October when Great Crested Newts and 
reptiles are active; (ii) Removing the waste by hand from the pond to enable 
emergent vegetation within the pond to re-colonise and reduce silt impacts on 
water quality and for this to be undertaken between September and October 
when Great Crested Newts are active but outside the breeding season; and 
(iii) The gap in the hedgerow to be replanted with holly and hazel saplings 
between November and March.  
 
6.13 Notwithstanding these proposed remediation measures, the retention 
of the waste is considered to be unacceptable for the reasons previously set 
out. In order to protect the landscape and ecological interests of the AONB, 
the deposited waste should be completely removed as soon as practicable. 
The route and construction of the access track to facilitate removal, as set out 
in the applicant’s Report, should be employed. The removal of all the waste 
from the woodland and pond should be undertaken between September and 
October to minimise disturbance to habitats and species and the re-planting of 
the hedgerow should take place in November. This means that the removal of 
waste and remediation works could be undertaken within a period of only 
three months of the year.   
 
6.14 Therefore, it is recommended that enforcement action should be taken 
to require the removal of the waste and for remediation works to be carried 
out between 1 September 2020 and 30 November 2020 to minimise the 
period of time for disturbance to the woodland. Furthermore, the applicant and 
any operator would need to take account of the provisions of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act in any activities undertaken at the site.  
 
Effect on amenity 
 
6.15 Policy WMP25 of the Waste and Minerals Plan requires development 
to have no unacceptable effect on the standard of amenity appropriate to the 
established, permitted or allocated land uses of the local and host 
communities likely to be affected by the proposal and that there is no 
unacceptable effect on the recreational use of an area, or the use of existing 
public rights of way. Policy OSS4 of the Rother Core Strategy requires 
development to respect and not detract from the character and appearance of 
the locality and not to unreasonably harm amenity. The High Weald AONB 
Management Plan seeks to maximise opportunities for everyone to enjoy the 
character of the AONB while conserving its natural beauty and to protect the 
perceptual qualities that people value.   
 

Page 26



6.16 The track from Beacon Lane, which adjoins the application site and 
provides vehicular access to properties, is also designated a public footpath 
(Ewhurst 34a), which subsequently splits into two separate footpaths further 
east. The High Weald AONB Unit has also identified the track as a historic 
routeway. 
 
6.17 Although the waste deposit is largely concealed from views from the 
footpath, the gap in the hedge and the surface ‘pad’ used to facilitate the 
tipping are clearly visible. This offers an opportunity for users of the footpath 
to gain views of the woodland and is the way in which the unauthorised 
activity came to the attention of the County Council. 
 
6.18 The breach in the hedgerow would be likely to lead to users of the 
footpath seeking views of the woodland and with them, views of the waste 
deposit. Such views would be likely to detract from the enjoyment of being 
within the High Weald countryside and adversely affect amenity. The 
development does nothing to promote the qualities of the AONB and conflicts 
with policies that seek to protect it for the benefit of people who wish to 
experience its naturalness.    
 
7. Conclusion and reasons for refusal 
 
7.1 In accordance with Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 the decision on this application should be taken in 
accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
 
7.2 The applicant is proposing to retain waste which has been tipped into 
woodland within the High Weald AONB. This appears to have been 
undertaken without any consideration of the damage that could occur to the 
landscape and wildlife interests of the area. Damage has occurred to trees 
and other vegetation within the woodland, which is in close proximity to 
ancient woodland. A long established pond has also been adversely affected 
by the deposit. The removal of waste could be achieved in a way that would 
minimise disturbance to the woodland and be of benefit in the longer term to 
the landscape and biodiversity interests. It would also be of benefit to users of 
the footpath as the character of the locality would be restored.  
 
7.3 The retention of the waste is unacceptable and planning permission 
should be refused. Instead, the waste should be removed. The development 
conflicts with Policies WMP25 and WMP27 of the East Sussex, South Downs 
and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013, Policies OSS4, RA2, 
RA3, EN1 and EN5 of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014, the 
provisions of Part 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the 
objectives of the High Weald AONB Management Plan 2019. It is also 
recommended that enforcement action should be taken to require the removal 
of the waste and for appropriate remediation measures to be carried out.    
 
7.4 In determining this planning application, the County Council has 
worked with the agent in a positive and proactive manner. The Council has 

Page 27



also sought views from consultees and neighbours and has considered these 
in preparing the recommendation. This approach has been taken positively 
and proactively in accordance with the requirement in the NPPF, and as set 
out in the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(England) Order 2015. 
 
7.5 There are no other material considerations and the decision should be 
taken in accordance with the Development Plan.  
 
8. Recommendation    
   
8.1 To recommend the Planning Committee to refuse planning permission 
for the reasons set out below and authorise the Director of Communities, 
Economy and Transport to take appropriate enforcement action to require the 
removal of the waste in liaison with the Assistant Chief Executive, 
Governance Services: 
 
1. The site is within the countryside and the development conflicts with 

Policies RA2 (viii) and RA3 (v) of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 
2014 which seeks to conserve, inter alia, the intrinsic value and the 
natural and ecological resources of the countryside and provide for 
appropriate development. 

 
2. The site is within the High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

and its use for the disposal of waste is contrary to conserving and 
enhancing the landscape quality and character of the area, thereby 
conflicting with Policy WMP27 (a) of the East Sussex, South Downs and 
Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Local Plan 2013, Policy EN1 (i) of 
the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014, paragraph 172 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the overall objectives of the High 
Weald AONB Management Plan 2019. 

 
3. The site is within a wooded area adjacent to an area of designated 

ancient woodland and the deposited waste materials are on a steep 
slope encroaching into a long established pond. These habitats are 
important for wildlife. As such, the use of land for the disposal of waste 
conflicts with Policy WMP27 (b) of the East Sussex, South Downs and 
Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013, Policies EN1 (viii) and 
EN5 (viii) of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014, paragraphs 175 
and 178 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the overall 
objectives of the High Weald AONB Management Plan 2019.    

 
4. The site adjoins a public right of way and historic routeway and the 

development results in an adverse visual effect to the amenity of users of 
the path due to the damage caused to the woodland, thereby conflicting 
with Policy OSS4 (iii) of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014, 
Policy WMP25 (a) and (d) of the East Sussex, South Downs and 
Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013 and Objectives OQ3 
and OQ4 of the High Weald AONB Management Plan 2019.  

 

Page 28



RUPERT CLUBB 
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
10 December 2019 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Application RR/828/CM 
The Development Plan 
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 
The High Weald Management Plan 2019  
 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Tennis Court

The Barn

Pond

Apple Tree

Pond

Pond

Cottage Pond

Pond

RR/828/CM
Appletree Cottage, Beacon Lane, Cripps Corner, Staplecross

Rupert Clubb   BEng (Hons) CEng MICE, Director
of Communities, Economy and Transport, East
Sussex County Council

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. East Sussex County

Location Plan

Site

0 4 82 Kilometers

0 80 16040 Meters̄

Application Site

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 13 November 2019
	5A Variation of Condition 2 (Approved drawings) of planning permission RR/741/CM seeking retrospective permission for amendments to the layout and fencing at the pumping station at Fourteen Acre Lane. Three Oaks Wastewater Pumping Station, Fourteen Acres Lane, Three Oaks - RR/834/CM
	RR-834-CM Site Plan
	RR-834-CM Landscape Site Plan

	5B Retention of deposited inert building waste. Appletree Cottage, Beacon Lane, Cripps Corner, Staplecross, Robertsbridge, TN32 5QP - RR/828/CM
	RR-828-CM Site Plan


